AD

GRANT NUMBER DAMD17-94-J-4103

TITLE: A Genetic Screen for Ligand Binding by the Human Estrogen Receptor

PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR: Dr. Mark D. Nichols

CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION: European Molecular Biology Organisation Heidelberg, 69012, Germany

REPORT DATE: September 1996

TYPE OF REPORT: Annual

PREPARED FOR: Commander U.S. Army Medical Research and Materiel Command Fort Detrick, Frederick, Maryland 21702-5012

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT: Approved for public release; distribution unlimited

The views, opinions and/or findings contained in this report are those of the author(s) and should not be construed as an official Department of the Army position, policy or decision unless so designated by other documentation.

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE			Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188	
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to Washington Headquarters Services, Directorate for Information periods and the ports, 1215 Jefferson Davis Highway, Suite 1204, Affington, VA 22002-4302, and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0704-0188), Washington, DC 20503.				
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave bland	k) 2. REPORT DATE September 1996	3. REPORT TYPE AND Annual (15 Au	DATES COVERED g 95 - 14 Aug 96)	
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE			5. FUNDING NUMBERS	
A Genetic Screen for Ligand Binding by the Human Estrogen Receptor			DAMD17-94-J-4103	
6. AUTHOR(S) Dr. Mark D. Nichols				
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) European Molecular Biology Organisation Heidelberg, 69012, Germany			8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER	
9. SPONSORING/MONITORING AGE Commander U.S. Army Medical Rese Fort Detrick, MD 2170	ENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(E earch and Materiel Com 92-5012	S) nmand	10. SPONSORING/MONITORING AGENCY REPORT NUMBER	
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19961216 037				
12a. DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILIT Approved for public re	Y STATEMENT	mlimited DTTC QU	126. DISTRIBUTION CODE	
 13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 FLP recombinase-steroid receptor fusion proteins convert ligand binding into DNA recombination. We describe a ligand responsive FLP - estrogen receptor binding domain (FLP-EBD) in yeast that accurately reflects known estrogen receptor agonist affinities. All tested estrogens, whether agonists or antagonists, induce FLP-EBD251-595 recombination, indicating that all induce EBD release from the Hsp90 complex. Altering the distance between FLP and the EBD domains in the fusion protein affects ligand inducibility. A FLP-EBD304-595, with 53 fewer amino acids, shows reduced inducibility by agonists, and unexpectedly, complete insensitivity to induction by all antagonists tested. Thus we observe a tethered interference between FLP and the EBD domains that differs depending on the distance between the two domains and the conformations induced by agonists or antagonists, presenting a distinction between estrogen agonists and antagonists in yeast. Combining this distinction with mutagenesis of the EBD has generated numerous mutations with altered ligand specificity, sometimes inverting the activation effects of hormones and antihormones. Further study will define the specific mechanisms leading to antihormone action, especially with respect to the therapeutically important antihormones, tamoxifen and raloxifene. 14. SUBJECT TERMS Breast Cancer, Tamoxifen, Hormone Binding Domain, in vitro Mutagenesis, Saccharomyces Cerevisieae, FLP Becombinase, DNA Recombination 				
17. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION 1	8. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION	19. SECURITY CLASSIFI	CATION 20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT	
OF REPORT	OF THIS PAGE	OF ABSTRACT	Inlimited	
Unclassified NSN 7540-01-280-5500	Unclassified	UNCLASSIFIED	Standard Form 298 (Rev. 2-89) Prescribed by ANSI Std. Z39-18 298-102	

5. •

FOREWORD

3

Opinions, interpretations, conclusions and recommendations are those of the author and are not necessarily endorsed by the US Army.

Where copyrighted material is quoted, permission has been obtained to use such material.

Where material from documents designated for limited distribution is quoted, permission has been obtained to use the material.

Citations of commercial organizations and trade names in this report do not constitute an official Department of Army endorsement or approval of the products or services of these organizations.

In conducting research using animals, the investigator(s) adhered to the "Guide for the Care and Use of Laboratory Animals," prepared by the Committee on Care and Use of Laboratory Animals of the Institute of Laboratory Resources, National Research Council (NIH Publication No. 86-23, Revised 1985).

For the protection of human subjects, the investigator(s) adhered to policies of applicable Federal Law 45 CFR 46.

<u>X</u> In conducting research utilizing recombinant DNA technology, the investigator(s) adhered to current guidelines promulgated by the National Institutes of Health.

In the conduct of research utilizing recombinant DNA, the investigator(s) adhered to the NIH Guidelines for Research Involving Recombinant DNA Molecules.

The state of the second second second

In the conduct of research involving hazardous organisms, the investigator(s) adhered to the CDC-NIH Guide for Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories.

D. Michole 9-9-96 Date

Signature

TABLE OF CONTENTS

, • ,

.

Front Cover	page	1
SF 298		2
Foreword		3
Table of Contents		4
Introduction		5
Objectives		
Body		8
Results:		
Strategy for expression and screening of		
ligand-induced FLP recombination		8
Characteristics of estrogen inducible recombination		9
Color plate assay for ligand function		10
Fusion point of the estrogen LBD differentially		
affects hormone/antihormone action		11
Library generation by codon substitution mutagenesis (C	SM)	12
Screening assay for altered specificity of ligand binding		12
Discussion:		
FLP-EBDs are induced by ligands in a		
concentration dependent manner		13
Fusing the estrogen LBD closer to FLP selectively		
blocks activation by antihormones	I.	14
LBD-fusion proteins regulated by a proximal Hsp90 comp	plex	15
Materials and Methods:		16
Conclusions		17
References		18
Figure legends		23
Table I		27
Figures		28

A Genetic Screen for Ligand Binding by the Human Estrogen Receptor.

Introduction

The molecular study of the steroid hormone receptors, including the estrogen, progesterone, glucocorticoid, androgen, and mineralocorticoid receptors, has determined that they display a modular structure composed of six domains, A to F (14). The two most conserved domains in the family are domains C and E, separated by a variable and nonconserved D domain sequence. Domain C is 66-68 amino acids long and has two zinc fingers, which mediate sequence-specific DNA binding. Domain E, also known as the ligand binding domain (LBD), is approximately 240 amino acids long (51) and mediates numerous overlapping functions: ligand binding, dimerization, Hsp90 binding, transrepression, transcriptional activation and modulation of receptor functions, including cellular localization other (4, 25).Understanding of domain C is extensive, but the complexity of multiple functions in domain E (LBD) has impeded progress. Mutations within LBDs have revealed some insight into the structure/function relationship. The recent x-ray crystal structures of the related retinoid and thyroid nuclear receptor LBDs presents a conceptual framework for understanding how LBDs function (8,32,36,43,47). Nevertheless, many questions of LBD function remain unanswered. In particular, the properties that determine whether a ligand functions as a hormone (agonist) or an antihormone (antagonist) remains unclear.

Steroid hormone receptors pass through several stages during activation from their unliganded forms to fully active transcription factors. Binding of hormone causes a conformational change in the receptor which dissociates the Hsp90 complex (correlating with the size transition from 8-9S to 4-5S in glycerol gradients), allowing receptor dimerization (11,37). Dimers of the estrogen receptor, for example, are then competent to bind specific estrogen response elements (EREs) upstream of estrogen-regulated Upon DNA binding, two domains of the receptor protein are genes (5,19). capable of transcriptional activation functions (AFs): a hormoneindependent AF-1 in the A/B domain and the hormone-dependent AF-2 within the E (LBD) domain. AF-1 and AF-2 functions vary in importance with individual promoters and cell-types and the net activity of AF-2 varies according to whether the bound ligand is an agonist or an antagonist (6, 26, 28, 46).

The LBDs of the steroid receptors also have the ability to repress the function of certain proteins to which they are fused, thereby rendering their function dependent on ligand (33). This property probably results from the ability of LBDs to complex with Hsp90 (and partners) in the absence of ligand (35). Ligand binding releases the LBD from the Hsp90 complex, freeing the fusion protein to locate to its site of activity (38).

Previously it had been shown that fusing LBDs onto transcription factors and oncoproteins successfully conveyed repression and ligand dependency onto the activities of the fusion proteins. Recently we showed that LBD regulation could also be used to convey ligand dependency onto the activity of the site specific recombinase FLP (23) from the yeast 2 micron episome. FLP recognizes DNA binding elements, termed FLP recognition targets (FRTs), that consist of a 13-bp inverted repeat separated by an 8 bp spacer (15). Recombination occurs between two FRTs and the product of recombination is determined by the spacer orientation. Thus deletions, inversions, integrations or translocations are possible (42).

FLP recombinase-LBD fusion proteins, when activated, produce a fixed change in reporter gene DNA, and thus relate ligand binding to an enzyme activity that is readily and precisely measurable (23). Furthermore, the transient event of ligand binding becomes converted by the recombinase activity of the FLP-LBD into fixed, heritable changes in DNA. Since the human estrogen receptor is a ligand-dependent transcription factor in S. cerevisiae (29), we reasoned that FLP-estrogen receptor LBDs (FLP-EBDs) would also be ligand-responsive in yeast. Here we examine the relationship between ligand binding and the enzyme activity of FLP-EBD fusion proteins. Ligand titration experiments show that ligand induced recombination reflects apparent ligand binding. Furthermore, all estrogens tested, either hormones or type 1 or type 2 antihormones (type 1 are partial agonists, e.g. 4-hydroxytamoxifen and type 2 are pure antagonists, e.g. ICI 182,780) induce recombination.

We also show that the amount of estrogen receptor D domain included in the fusion protein between the FLP and EBD domains influences the activity of the recombinase. If the D domain is omitted, antihormones but not hormones, are unable to activate the fusion recombinase. The ability to distinguish between hormones and antihormones in yeast is extremely important in understanding how ligands activate the estrogen receptor. The objective of this effort is to exploit yeast-based genetic screens of mutated EBD clone banks to find mutations which specifically alter ligand binding, and hence recombination. By use of different ligands and various concentrations, we will attempt to map specific amino acid changes to specific side-groups of ligands, thereby defining components of the binding pocket and making rational ligand design more predictable. Combining the EBD fusion point dependence for antihormone action with numerous random mutations of the estrogen binding domain has produced many EBDs which show altered or reversed activation by hormones and antihormones.

Objectives

The research being pursued involves defining the specific interactions between estrogen ligands and the estrogen binding domain to ascertain a better understanding of ligand binding and function, especially concerning hormones and antihormones. The fusion point dependence for antihormone action in our FLP recombinase/ estrogen binding domain (FLP-EBD) system allows a mechanism to study therapeutically important antihormones, such as tamoxifen and raloxifene, and why/how they act as antihormones. This strategy separates the interdigitated functions present in the estrogen binding domain and should lead to a more precise functional characterization of the domain as well as further the potential for rational drug design.

BODY

This report covers the grants, DAMD17-94-J-4103 (Sept 95-Aug 96); DAMD17-94-J-4249 (Sept 95-Aug 96). The work to date has involved characterizing FLP recombinase-estrogen receptor hormone binding domain (FLP-EBD) fusion proteins in yeast and screening mutated ligand binding domains for altered ligand interaction. Having continued to develop and improve the basic strategy, we have applied it to (a) continued mutagenic library screening, the results from such screens are presented below, and (b) ligand induced changes in yeast colony color as a simple way to differentiate estrogen hormones and antihormones. We will also continue to include work with the therapeutically important antihormones, tamoxifen and raloxifene.

Results:

Strategy for expression and screening of ligand induced FLP recombination.

The LBD of the human estrogen receptor (EBD) includes amino acids 303 to 534, as revealed by deletion analysis (20,22) and 308 to 546 by sequence alignment (51). To regulate the FLP recombinase in yeast, the human ER hormone binding domain (domains D, E, and F; aa 251-595) was fused to the C-terminus of the entire coding sequence (423 aa) of FLP recombinase. The fusion gene was cloned under the control of the GAL10 galactose promoter (Figure 1A). Thus transcription and expression is limited to galactose media, with virtually no expression in glucose media. The fusion gene was inserted into a derivative of pRS315 (40), a single-copy CEN plasmid with the LEU2 selectable marker.

To aid in the subcloning of mutated oligonucleotide libraries, various restriction sites have been modified or introduced into the estrogen LBD coding sequence (aa 306-595 of the human ER) without changing the amino acid sequence. Several unique sites downstream of the gene also allow the mutated oligonucleotide PCR products to be recloned easily. More specific details are presented in last year's report.

To measure FLP recombinase activity, a deletion recombination substrate was integrated at the TRP1 locus, and was confirmed to be present as a single copy by southern analysis (not shown). The recombination substrate includes the constitutive alcohol dehydrogenase (ADH1) promoter directing transcription of the URA3 gene, followed by a polyA signal to terminate RNA Pol II transcription (Figure 1B). The URA3 gene and a SUP11 ochre suppressor tRNA gene are flanked by FLP recombination targets

The URA3⁺ gene can be positively selected by growth in the absence (FRTs). of uracil and negatively selected by addition of 5-fluoroorotic acid (5-FOA) which poisons URA3⁺ cells. The SUP11 ochre suppressor tRNA gene between the FRTs allows recombination to be detected visually using the Ade2⁺ colony color assay (31). When present, the tRNA red/white suppresses the ade2-1 ochre allele in the yeast strain and gives white colonies. If absent, the yeast cells visibly accumulate a red pigment when grown with sustaining levels of adenine. Following the second FRT is the coding region of the LacZ gene of E. coli. Expression from the LacZ gene to give β -galactosidase activity (and blue yeast colonies on X-gal plates) absolutely depends on deletion of the URA3 gene to juxtapose the ADH promoter and the LacZ gene (Fig. 1, data not shown). Hence this recombination substrate permits the detection of recombination by two different colony color assays or by Southern analysis.

Characteristics of estrogen inducible recombination.

To examine the kinetics and characteristics of recombination, we performed time course experiments. Cells were initially grown in glucose, and at time zero, the cells were resuspended in 2% galactose media containing 10⁻⁶ M estradiol. For precision, recombination was measured directly by Southern blotting (Figure 2), where quantification depends on a ratio of bands within one lane and is not affected by lane to lane DNA loading variations. Included were both the wild-type (wt) EBD (FLP-EBD_{wt}, with ER amino acids 251-595) as well as the single-substitution mutation G400V (FLP-EBDG400V) form, which is known to have a lower affinity for ligands (44). Both these constructs include the complete D domain, using ER aa 251 as the fusion point. After 4 hours, consistent with data concerning onset of galactose inducible promoters (16), the products of recombination are apparent in the samples induced with estradiol. Recombination products are then produced linearly with time until about 8 hours (Figure 2, At 23 hours, little further recombination is evident in the panel B). galactose plus hormone samples, reflecting exhaustion of the substrate. Although FLP-EBD recombination responds to ligand, some recombination is apparent in the ligand free samples. This is particularly evident in the 23hr samples (Fig. 2, panel A).

Since fusing a protein domain onto a fully functional enzyme may alter enzyme activity, we used galactose inducibility to compare efficiencies of wt FLP and FLP-LBDs. Figure 2C shows that FLP-ER (FLP-EBD251-595) or FLP-AR (with the androgen binding domain) are only marginally less active as recombinases than unmodified FLP when the appropriate hormone is given. In this experiment at 7hr, unmodified FLP has recombined 61% of the substrate, FLP-ER 43% and FLP-AR 59%. This also documents that ligand regulation works well for both FLP-ER and FLP-AR.

To examine the ligand responsiveness of FLP-EBDs, we performed hormone concentration titrations with a variety of known estrogen hormones and antihormones (Figure 1C). Estradiol, hexestrol, and diethylstilbestrol are all known agonists, while ICI 182,780, 4hydroxytamoxifen, nafoxidine, and raloxifene are antagonists, defective in at least some aspects of activating ER. Each of the titration experiments was performed with both FLP-EBD_{wt} and FLP-EBDG400V fusion proteins. Based on the time course results (Figure 2), cells were harvested in the linear phase of recombination at 7 hours. The three agonists, estradiol, hexestrol, and diethylstilbestrol, show a similar relationship (Figure 3), i.e. each have an observed half maximal recombination of about 0.3 nM for the wild-type receptor fusion and about a 10 nM for the G400V form. These values are in good agreement with the known dissociation constants (Kds) for these ligands with the wt and G400V estrogen receptors (27,44). Thus the response of FLP-EBDs to these ligands is a simple reflection of ligand binding by the EBD.

In contrast, inducing recombination with several antihormones all show a much reduced relative Kd in yeast (Figure 4), compared to the known Kds for mammalian ERs (41,48,49). With FLP- EBD_{wt} , these compounds show half maximal inductions at about 300 nM and those for the G400V form are >1000 nM. Since we observe that the FLP-EBDG400V form shows the expected reduced sensitivity when compared to the FLP-EBD_{wt}, a probable reason for these high values is the low permeability of the These antihormones are antihormones through yeast cell walls (24,52). significantly larger molecules than the agonists, which probably reduces their net internal concentration. Nevertheless, this data shows that all ligands tested, whether hormones or antihormones, induce both the wt and G400V FLP-EBD fusion proteins, though we continued in our mutation studies using only the wild-type EBD as a background.

Color plate assay for ligand function.

Southern analysis of ligand induced, FLP-EBD mediated recombination demonstrated that recombination reflects the concentration of particular ligand being tested (Figures 3,4). Therefore an Ade2⁺ color plate assay for ligand induced recombination was developed as a way to visualize the presence and concentration of ligands. Lawns of transformed cells with FLP-EBD_{wt} or FLP-EBDG400V forms were screened for color formation with several ligand concentrations (Figure 5). A drop of ligand was applied to the center of a standard 9 cm petri plate and cells with recombined targets should develop a red color. Wild-type and G400V forms show the expected differences in red circle formation, based on their relative response to estrogen (Fig. 3). For example, similar sized red circles (about 4 cm diameter) were observed when FLP-EBD_{wt} was exposed to 0.1 nmols and FLP-EBDG400V to 100 times more (10 nmol). The results confirm that this "circle" test reflects amounts of ligand applied as well as relative affinities. This plate assay has been the core of our ability to find and confirm mutations from libraries which show an altered ligand response relative to the wild-type EBD sequence (Table I).

<u>Fusion point of the estrogen LBD differentially affects</u> hormone/antihormone action.

All previous applications of estrogen receptor EBDs to regulate other fusion proteins have used as 282 of the EBD as the fusion point (33, and references therein). This includes about half of the D domain (aa 263-305). The D domain is thought to be a flexible, unstructured hinge region between the conserved C (DNA binding) and E (ligand binding) domains (8,13,21,36,39,47). Previous work suggested that the spacing between the LBD and the regulated protein may influence the regulatory potential by the LBD (34). Since recombination presents a more precise way to assay for LBD functions than available to previous LBD fusion proteins, we compared FLP-EBDs that do or do not include the D domain (fusion at aa 251 vs. aa 304, Coupled with this fusion point variation, we tested both the wt Figure 6). and G400V forms of the EBD, as well as responses to estradiol or 4hydroxytamoxifen (Figure 7). Removing the D domain (304) does indeed reduce the level of background observable in the absence of ligand; however the overall level of recombination mediated by the 304 construct was reduced, as was the apparent affinity for estradiol by about 10-fold (Figure 7A). Unexpectedly, we observed that the 304 constructs were essentially unactivatable by the antihormone 4-hydroxytamoxifen (Figure 7B), even at very high concentrations for 24h (Figure 8, and data not shown).

To more fully address the influence of the D domain on fusion protein repression and ligand specific inducibility, we made a more extensive comparison of hormones and antihormones with the 251 vs. the 304 fusion constructs (Figure 8A). The deletion of the D domain has a profound effect on the fusion recombinases. Very high concentrations (10^{-5} M) of the antihormones are still unable to activate recombination of the 304 forms, whereas the 251 forms activate well under identical conditions. We tested this surprising observation further by constructing a FLP-EBD that contained part of the D domain (fusion at aa 286). A comparison of FLP-EBDs that include all (251), part (286) or none (304) of the D domain (Figure 8B) shows that the 286 construct has an intermediate phenotype. The ligand responsiveness of the 286 construct is reduced when compared to the 251 construct, however less so for estradiol than the antihormones.

Library generation by codon substitution mutagenesis (CSM)

CSM is the best method available for saturation mutagenesis of a It is an oligonucleotide based method, achieved by mixing region (10). small-scale synthesis of three random nucleotides with a large-scale synthesis containing the wild-type codon. This is repeated for each codon to be mutated and consequently involves intensive use of two oligonucleotide We have initiated this technique to be established synthesizing machines. by the oligo service here at EMBL. The initial mutation libraries focused on a region (aa 506-532) previously implicated by random single mutation data as very likely to be important for estrogen ligand specificity. We have since generated a total of eight libraries (see Figure 9) covering many of the predicted regions of importance for ligand interaction or specificity, as judged by the existing x-ray crystal structures of the retinoid receptors, RAR, RXR, and TR (8,36,47). A major improvement over the strategy outlined in the original proposal is to PCR amplify the synthesized oligo library and clone to unique sites of choice (see last year's report). This allows two advantages: (i) the inherently low chemical yields of long, mutated oligos are circumvented by PCR amplification, and (ii) subsequent cloning relies on only one unique restriction site in each region, which we have set up throughout the LBD.

Screening assay for altered specificity of ligand binding

After generating a library of mutagenized FLP-EBD constructs, we perform a screening assay as outlined in Figure 10. After plating thousands of independent yeast transformants from a mutagenesis library, we pool the colonies and grow a culture in galactose to induce transcription of the recombinase fusion gene. The cells are grown in the presence of a first ligand and selected for <u>non</u>-recombination, i.e. fusion proteins which are not induced by the first ligand. The cultures are collected, washed and grown in galactose with a second ligand for which we screen <u>for</u> recombination, using the plate assay outlined above. Hence we enrich for plasmids containing mutations that are unreactive with a first ligand, yet still retain binding to a second ligand which results in recombination. These plasmids are retested in the parent strain to confirm differential inducibility, as compared to the wild-type sequence, by a set of ligands. Screening of the 8 libraries outlined in Figure 9 is ongoing, and results thus far are summarized in Table I.

Discussion:

FLP-EBDs are induced by ligands in a concentration dependent manner.

Hormones for the estrogen receptor show similar affinities for FLP-EBD_{wt} in yeast as they do for the full length receptor expressed in mammalian systems. The FLP-EBDG400V shows about 30-100X lower affinity when compared to FLP-EBD_{wt} (Figure 3), as expected from the reduced agonist affinities to full-length G400V receptor (44). We observe that agonist inductions of these FLP-EBDs therefore accurately reflect ER binding affinities and conclude that all parts of ER required for full agonist binding affinity are present. In addition, FLP-AR fusion proteins containing equivalent D+E+F domains of the human androgen receptor are also activated with wild-type affinities by androgens (Figure 2C; not shown).

Antagonists, however, require higher concentrations to activate the FLP-EBDs in yeast relative to ER in mammalian cells, probably because of reduced permeability into yeast cells, as has been described (24,52). In those studies, yeast extracts containing ER had normal ligand affinities, implying permeability as the reason for low antagonist activity (18,24,52). Consistent with this explanation, FLP-EBDG400V needs much higher concentrations of antagonists than FLP-EBD_{wt} (Figure 4), as expected from its reduced affinity for ligands.

Although FLP-EBDs including all of the D domain display agonist inductions equivalent to full-length ER affinities, this is not the case for constructs that omit the D domain. FLP-EBD304, which contains none of the D domain, displays reduced inducibility by estradiol (Figure 7) and virtually no inducibility by antagonists (Figures 7,8). The recent crystal structures of three nuclear receptor LBDs (8,36,47) strengthens the evidence that the D domain does not play any direct role in ligand binding. Therefore either the D domain plays an indirect role or the close juxtaposition of FLP recombinase to the EBD interferes with recombinase activation by ligand. A combination of both explanations is also possible.

Fusing the estrogen LBD closer to FLP selectively blocks activation by antihormones.

Using transcription assays in yeast, classical ER antihormones in mammalian cells behave as weak agonists and do not antagonize estradiol activation, even at very high (5 μ M- 200 μ M) concentrations The partial agonist transcriptional activity of 4-(6, 24, 29, 45, 50, 52).hydroxytamoxifen in yeast and mammalian cells results from the action of AF-1 when the ER is bound to an ERE, as AF-2 can be deleted (6,46). The properties that determine whether a ligand acts as a hormone or an antihormone are unclear, though it is almost certain that different conformations of the LBD and the AF-2 transcriptional surface that result from ligand binding primarily determines agonists vs. antagonists (1,2,5,26). ER antihormones are thought to interrupt the presentation of the hormonedependent AF-2 activation surface, resulting from an altered conformation In the FLP-EBD recombinase assay described after antihormone binding. here, all ligands, whether agonists or antagonists, induce recombination by the FLP-EBD251-595 forms in a concentration dependent manner that appears to be a simple reflection of internal ligand concentration. The assav requires only that ligand binds and causes a conformational change to derepress the FLP-EBD. Subsequent presentation of AF-2 or DNA binding to an ERE is not measured, however the EBD must adopt a conformation that does not interfere with the FLP recombination mechanism, which involves four protein monomers (9). Antihormones are much larger than hormones and probably interrupt the relatively compact LBD structure that would form around bound hormones (36,47). The D domain is thought to act as a flexible linker between the C domain zinc fingers and the LBD of natural hormone receptors, or between FLP and the LBD in our assay. However when the D domain is removed and the LBD is closer, as in the FLP-EBD304-595 form, hormone induction is impaired and antihormone induction is We reason that the antihormone-induced conformation of the prevented. EBD interferes with the FLP reaction, possibly by not allowing the FLP tetramers to align as an intermediate to recombination. The intermediate phenotype of the 286 fusion, which shows that the antagonist sensitivity to shortened D domains is not an all-or-none phenomenon, is compatible with this model. Since AF-2 activity is not transcriptionally measurable in yeast, this presents a first yeast assay for the discrimination between hormones and antihormones. For example, a compound which induces recombination with the 251 form but not the 304 form likely has antihormone properties and can be tested in full-size ER assays for confirmation. Taken together, this presents a functional assay to probe the difference between hormone and antihormone action on the estrogen receptor in yeast.

LBD-fusion proteins regulated by a proximal Hsp90 complex.

Current models to explain how LBDs regulate the proteins to which they are fused invoke a primary role for the Hsp90 complex (33). The Hsp90 complex is ubiquitous and abundant, and possesses chaperonin activity (35). Further recent evidence that the steroid receptor LBDs are associated with this complex in the unliganded state has come from genetic experiments with yeast (7,17,30). Fusion of an LBD onto a heterologous protein is believed to direct the fusion protein to associate with the Hsp90 Binding of agonists promotes LBD release from the complex, thus complex. derepressing the fusion protein functions. Whether all antagonists serve to release LBDs from the Hsp90 complex to the same extent remains unclear. However, we observe that all ligands, regardless of whether they are agonists or antagonists, induce recombination by FLP-EBD251-595. We therefore conclude that all of these ligands, which include partial antagonists [4-hydroxytamoxifen, (6)] and complete antagonists [ICI 182,780, (12,48)] induce release from the Hsp90 complex.

It was shown before that the distance between the LBD and the regulated protein was important to complete ligand regulation. When the distance was artificially increased between E1A protein and a glucocorticoid receptor (GR) LBD, regulation was lost and background activity without hormone was significant (34). Likewise we observe that the FLP-EBD251-595 forms are partially active without ligand at later times (Figure 2A), but the shorter FLP-EBD304-595 forms show no background whatsoever (Figure 7, 8; unpublished data), presumably because the Hsp90 complex is closer to the recombinase.

Materials and Methods Strains and chemicals.

The yeast strain used for these experiments (MAT a, leu2-3,112, his3-11,15, ura3-52, trp1-1::(TRP1,URA3,SUP11), ade2-10chre, can1-100) was derived from RS453 (R. Serrano, Valencia, Spain) by integrating the target of recombination (Fig. 1B) at the *trp1* locus (PmlI site). Transformation of yeast by the LiAc method was performed as described (3). Transformed yeasts were grown and maintained with selection for leucine and tryptophan in glucose or galactose supplemented synthetic media from BIO The hormones and antihormones were purchased from Sigma, 101. Inc. except 4-hydroxytamoxifen (Research Biochemicals International), mibolerone (New England Nuclear), and ICI 182,780 (a gift from Dr. A. Wakeling, Zeneca Pharmaceuticals).

Southern assays, ligand titration experiments, and quantification.

Transformed yeast, containing the GAL10 promoter, FLP-EBD gene on pRS315 (40), were grown in synthetic glucose medium lacking leucine and tryptophan to OD600 of about 1.5. Equal volumes of cultures were collected and resuspended in medium containing 2% galactose with or without Cells were collected at times noted and DNA was prepared by hormone. standard procedures using a zymolyase 20T (ICN) incubation, SDS lysis, followed by potassium acetate precipitation as described (3). About 10 µg of DNA per lane was digested with PstI and loaded on 0.7% gels in 1x TAE buffer. Gels were treated with 0.25M HCl for 10 min, 0.4M NaOH for 2x 30 min, 20x SSC for 30 min, and then blotted to Qiagen nylon plus filters with 20x SSC. After baking the filter at 80° C for 2 hr, they were probed at 72° C with a riboprobe made from the 1.2 kb Scal-BsiWI fragment of the E. coli LacZ gene in a buffer containing 250 mM Na⁺ phosphate pH 7.2, 7% SDS, and 1 mM EDTA. Washes were performed in 25 mM Na⁺ phosphate pH 7.2, 1% SDS and 1 mM EDTA at 72°C. Radioactive bands on the filters were quantified using the Phosphorimager system by Molecular Dynamics, Inc. Observed recombination was calculated as the ratio within a lane [counts in the recombined band/ (counts in recombined + unrecombined bands)], and is therefore not affected by minor variations in the amount of DNA loaded. Plate assay.

Yeast containing the integrated SUP11 recombination substrate and either the wt or G400V FLP-EBD fusion proteins were plated at high density on synthetic galactose plates lacking leucine and tryptophan. A 1 μ l drop of ethanol containing ligand (or not) was placed at the center of the plate. The plates were grown at 30° C for 4 days to maximize red color formation.

CONCLUSIONS

The components of estrogen ligand-inducible recombination mediated by FLP-EBD fusion proteins have been established as an assay in yeast. The properties of the assay show that all ligands are able to activate FLP-EBD fusion proteins when fused from amino acid (aa) 251 of ER. Fusions from aa 304 report only hormone binding, whereas antihormone binding probably forms an EBD conformation which blocks recombination by a steric mechanism. This presents a simple assay to predict hormone vs. antihormone activity of a compound in yeast, as well as a way to screen for interactions with amino acids defining hormones functional vs. antihormones. We have used codon substitution mutagenesis (CSM) to generate 8 different mutagenized EBD libraries. Estrogen induced changes in yeast colony color has been used as a simple method to detect ligand binding, and to measure its relative hormone and antihormone character.

In the coming year we will:

(a) construct and screen further CSM libraries of EBD mutations and continue analysis of those already in progress. These libraries will be screened for mutations that alter (i) responsiveness to known estrogen hormones and antihormones (Fig 1); (ii) responsiveness to ligands that are very poor estrogens; (iii) the repressive functions of the EBD, as assayed by either their constitutive activity or failure to respond to authentic estrogens.
(b) further develop the potential of the assay as a method to detect and measure estrogenic activities. This will include work addressing estrogens from environmental samples of potentially hazardous manufacturing waste.
(c) alter the N and C termini of the EBD in FLP-EBD fusion proteins in order to define the functional boundaries of the EBD with regard to its repressive properties.

(d) perform direct ligand binding assays to measure ligand affinity changes with many of the mutations already generated.

(e) reclone and test in the natural full-sized estrogen receptor (ER) the effects of particular mutations on transcription in reporter assays.

These studies address two important questions. What are the amino acid determinants of ligand binding specificity in the estrogen receptor? Can the FLP-EBD fusion proteins define precisely the functional components of hormone versus antihormone action? These will both be decisive in understanding how tamoxifen and raloxifene bring about their positive effects in present endocrine therapies, and in developing better therapeutic agents for the future.

References

1. Allan, G. F., X. Leng, S. Y. Tsai, N. L. Weigel, D. P. Edwards, M. J. Tsai, and B. W. O'Malley. 1992. Hormone and antihormone induce distinct conformational changes which are central to steroid receptor activation. J Biol Chem 267:19513-20.

2. Allan, G. F., S. Y. Tsai, M. J. Tsai, and B. W. O'Malley. 1992. Ligand-dependent conformational changes in the progesterone receptor are necessary for events that follow DNA binding. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA 89:11750-4.

3. Ausubel, F. M., Brent, R., Kingston, R.E., Moore, D.D., Seidman, J.G., Smith, J.A., and Struhl, K. (ed.). 1995. Current Protocols in Molecular Biology, vol. 1-3. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Cambridge, MA USA.

4. Beato, M., P. Herrlich, and G. Schütz. 1995. Steroid hormone receptors: many actors in search of a plot. Cell 83:851-7.

5. Beekman, J. M., G. F. Allan, S. Y. Tsai, M. J. Tsai, and B. W. O'Malley. 1993. Transcriptional activation by the estrogen receptor requires a conformational change in the ligand binding domain. Mol Endocrinol 7:1266-74.

6. Berry, M., D. Metzger, and P. Chambon. 1990. Role of the two activating domains of the oestrogen receptor in the cell-type and promoter-context dependent agonistic activity of the anti-oestrogen 4-hydroxytamoxifen. Embo J 9:2811-8.

7. Bohen, S. P., and K. R. Yamamoto. 1993. Isolation of Hsp90 mutants by screening for decreased steroid receptor function. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A 90:11424-8.

8. Bourguet, W., M. Ruff, P. Chambon, H. Gronemeyer, and D. Moras. 1995. Crystal structure of the ligand-binding domain of the human nuclear receptor RXR-alpha. Nature 375:377-82.

9. Chen, J. W., J. Lee, and M. Jayaram. 1992. DNA cleavage in trans by the active site tyrosine during Flp recombination: switching protein partners before exchanging strands. Cell 69:647-58.

10. Cormack, B.P. and Struhl, K. 1993. Regional codon randomization: Defining a TATA-binding protein surface required for RNA polymerase III transcription. Science, 262: 244-248.12.

11. Fawell, S. E., J. A. Lees, R. White, and M. G. Parker. 1990. Characterization and colocalization of steroid binding and dimerization activities in the mouse estrogen receptor. Cell 60:953-62. 12. Fawell, S. E., R. White, S. Hoare, M. Sydenham, M. Page, and M. G. Parker. 1990. Inhibition of estrogen receptor-DNA binding by the "pure" antiestrogen ICI 164,384 appears to be mediated by impaired receptor dimerization. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A 87:6883-7.

13. Freedman, L. P., and B. F. Luisi. 1993. On the mechanism of DNA binding by nuclear hormone receptors: a structural and functional perspective. J Cell Biochem 51:140-50.

14. Green, S., and P. Chambon. 1988. Nuclear receptors enhance our understanding of transcription regulation. Trends Genet 4:309-14.

15. Jayaram, M. 1985. Two-micrometer circle site-specific recombination: the minimal substrate and the possible role of flanking sequences. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A 82:5875-9.

16. Johnston, M. 1987. A model fungal gene regulatory mechanism: the GAL genes of Saccharomyces cerevisiae. Microbiol Rev 51:458-76.

17. Kimura, Y., I. Yahara, and S. Lindquist. 1995. Role of the protein chaperone YDJ1 in establishing Hsp90-mediated signal transduction pathways. Science 268:1362-5.

18. Kohno, H., O. Gandini, S. W. Curtis, and K. S. Korach. 1994. Antiestrogen activity in the yeast transcription system: estrogen receptor mediated agonist response. Steroids 59:572-8.

19. Kumar, V., and P. Chambon. 1988. The estrogen receptor binds tightly to its responsive element as a ligand-induced homodimer. Cell 55:145-56.

20. Kumar, V., S. Green, A. Staub, and P. Chambon. 1986. Localisation of the oestradiol-binding and putative DNA-binding domains of the human oestrogen receptor. Embo J 5:2231-6.

21. Lee, M. S., S. A. Kliewer, J. Provencal, P. E. Wright, and R. M. Evans. 1993. Structure of the retinoid X receptor alpha DNA binding domain: a helix required for homodimeric DNA binding. Science 260:1117-21.

22. Lees, J. A., S. E. Fawell, and M. G. Parker. 1989. Identification of two transactivation domains in the mouse oestrogen receptor. Nucleic Acids Res 17:5477-88.

23. Logie, C., and A. F. Stewart. 1995. Ligand-regulated site-specific recombination. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A 92:5940-4.

24. Lyttle, C. R., P. Damian Matsumura, H. Juul, and T. R. Butt. 1992. Human estrogen receptor regulation in a yeast model system and studies on receptor agonists and antagonists. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol 42:677-85. 25. Mangelsdorf, D. J., C. Thummel, M. Beato, P. Herrlich, G. Schütz, K. Umesono, B. Blumberg, P. Kastner, M. Mark, P. Chambon, and et al. 1995. The nuclear receptor superfamily: the second decade. Cell 83:835-9.

26. McDonnell, D. P., D. L. Clemm, T. Hermann, M. E. Goldman, and J. W. Pike. 1995. Analysis of estrogen receptor function in vitro reveals three distinct classes of antiestrogens. Mol Endocrinol 9:659-69.

27. McDonnell, D. P., Z. Nawaz, C. Densmore, N. L. Weigel, T. A. Pham, J. H. Clark, and B. W. O'Malley. 1991. High level expression of biologically active estrogen receptor in Saccharomyces cerevisiae. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol 39:291-7.

28. Metzger, D., R. Losson, J. M. Bornert, Y. Lemoine, and P. Chambon. 1992. Promoter specificity of the two transcriptional activation functions of the human oestrogen receptor in yeast. Nucleic Acids Res 20:2813-7.

29. Metzger, D., J. H. White, and P. Chambon. 1988. The human oestrogen receptor functions in yeast. Nature 334:31-6.

30. Nathan, D. F., and S. Lindquist. 1995. Mutational analysis of Hsp90 function: interactions with a steroid receptor and a protein kinase. Mol Cell Biol 15:3917-25.

31. Nichols, M., I. Willis, and D. Söll. 1990. Yeast suppressor mutations and transfer RNA processing. Methods Enzymol 181:377-94.

32. Parker, M. G., and R. White. 1996. Nuclear receptors spring into action. Nat Struct Biol 3:113-5.

33. Picard, D. 1994. Regulation of protein function through expression of chimaeric proteins. Curr Opin Biotechnol 5:511-5.

34. Picard, D., S. J. Salser, and K. R. Yamamoto. 1988. A movable and regulable inactivation function within the steroid binding domain of the glucocorticoid receptor. Cell 54:1073-80.

35. Pratt, W. B., and M. J. Welsh. 1994. Chaperone functions of the heat shock proteins associated with steroid receptors. Semin Cell Biol 5:83-93.

36. Renaud, J. P., N. Rochel, M. Ruff, V. Vivat, P. Chambon, H. Gronemeyer, and D. Moras. 1995. Crystal structure of the RAR-gamma ligand-binding domain bound to all-trans retinoic acid. Nature 378:681-9 37. Sanchez, E. R., D. O. Toft, M. J. Schlesinger, and W. B. Pratt. 1985. Evidence that the 90-kDa phosphoprotein associated with the untransformed L-cell glucocorticoid receptor is a murine heat shock protein. J Biol Chem 260:12398-401.

.

38. Scherrer, L. C., D. Picard, E. Massa, J. M. Harmon, S. S. Simons, Jr., K. R. Yamamoto, and W. B. Pratt. 1993. Evidence that the hormone binding domain of steroid receptors confers hormonal control on chimeric proteins by determining their hormone-regulated binding to heat-shock protein 90. Biochemistry 32:5381-6.

39. Schwabe, J. W., L. Chapman, J. T. Finch, and D. Rhodes. 1993. The crystal structure of the estrogen receptor DNA-binding domain bound to DNA: how receptors discriminate between their response elements. Cell 75:567-78.

40. Sikorski, R. S., and P. Hieter. 1989. A system of shuttle vectors and yeast host strains designed for efficient manipulation of DNA in Saccharomyces cerevisiae. Genetics 122:19-27.

41. Simpson, D. M., J. F. Elliston, and J. A. Katzenellenbogen. 1987. Desmethylnafoxidine aziridine: an electrophilic affinity label for the estrogen receptor with high efficiency and selectivity. J Steroid Biochem 28:233-45.

42. Stark, W. M., M. R. Boocock, and D. J. Sherratt. 1992. Catalysis by site-specific recombinases. Trends Genet 8:432-9.

43. Stewart, A. F., C. Logie, and M. Nichols. 1996. Regulation of nuclear receptors by agonists and antagonists. Curr Opin Endocrin & Diabet 3: in press.

44. Tora, L., A. Mullick, D. Metzger, M. Ponglikitmongkol, I. Park, and P. Chambon. 1989. The cloned human oestrogen receptor contains a mutation which alters its hormone binding properties. Embo J 8:1981-6.

45. Tora, L., J. White, C. Brou, D. Tasset, N. Webster, E. Scheer, and P. Chambon. 1989. The human estrogen receptor has two independent nonacidic transcriptional activation functions. Cell 59:477-87.

46. Tzukerman, M. T., A. Esty, D. Santiso Mere, P. Danielian, M. G. Parker, R. B. Stein, J. W. Pike, and D. P. McDonnell. 1994. Human estrogen receptor transactivational capacity is determined by both cellular and promoter context and mediated by two functionally distinct intramolecular regions. Mol Endocrinol 8:21-30.

47. Wagner, R. L., J. W. Apriletti, M. E. McGrath, B. L. West, J. D. Baxter, and R. J. Fletterick. 1995. A structural role for hormone in the thyroid hormone receptor. Nature 378:690-7.

48. Wakeling, A. E., M. Dukes, and J. Bowler. 1991. A potent specific pure antiestrogen with clinical potential. Cancer Res 51:3867-73.

•

49. Wei, L. L., B. S. Katzenellenbogen, D. W. Robertson, D. M. Simpson, and J. A. Katzenellenbogen. 1986. Nitrosourea and nitrosocarbamate derivatives of the antiestrogen tamoxifen as potential estrogen receptor-mediated cytotoxic agents in human breast cancer cells. Breast Cancer Res Treat 7:77-90.

50. Wrenn, C. K., and B. S. Katzenellenbogen. 1993. Structurefunction analysis of the hormone binding domain of the human estrogen receptor by region-specific mutagenesis and phenotypic screening in yeast. J Biol Chem 268:24089-98.

51. Wurtz, J. M., W. Bourguet, J. P. Renaud, V. Vivat, P. Chambon, D. Moras, and H. Gronemeyer. 1996. A canonical structure for the ligand-binding domain of nuclear receptors. Nat Struct Biol 3:87-94.

52. Zysk, J. R., B. Johnson, B. A. Ozenberger, B. Bingham, and J. Gorski. 1995. Selective uptake of estrogenic compounds by Saccharomyces cerevisiae: a mechanism for antiestrogen resistance in yeast expressing the mammalian estrogen receptor. Endocrinology 136:1323-6.

Figure Legends

Figure 1. (A) Diagram of the FLP-EBD expression plasmid displaying its functional elements. The gene for the FLP-ER LBD fusion protein is driven by a galactose promoter on a plasmid in yeast. (B) Diagram of the FLP Before recombination, the constitutively recombination deletion strategy. active ADH1 promoter expresses the URA3 selectable marker which lies between directly repeated FLP recombination targets (FRTs, shown as The polyadenylation signals (pA) after URA3 prevent LacZ triangles). Also lying between the recombination targets is a SUP11 gene expression. which is transcribed in the opposite direction, as depicted by the short arrow. Downstream of the second recombination target is the LacZ coding After recombination, the URA3/SUP11 region is excised and the region. LacZ gene juxtaposed to the ADH1 promoter. Recombination mediated alterations in cellular phenotype are displayed at the right of the diagram. Note that expression of the endogenous Ade2+ gene relies on SUP11 The diagram also outlines the Southern strategy employed. expression. Α 5.6 kb fragment is reduced by recombination to a 4 kb fragment when a probe from the LacZ gene is used. (C) Structures of the ligands tested with the FLP-EBD. The hormones are shown above the line, antihormones below.

Figure 2. (A) A time course of induction of recombination after the addition of yeast cells to galactose media containing 10^{-6} M estradiol (+) or The onset of recombinase activity reflects the 2-3 hour lag for not (-). galactose-inducible promoters. Recombination is approximately linear from 4 hours to 8 hours. (B) The Southern blots were quantified by PhosporImager analysis, and observed recombination, as determined by the ratio [counts in the recombined band/ (counts in recombined + unrecombined bands)], was calculated for each hormone treated sample and (C) The recombinase activities of the wild-type FLP protein and plotted. FLP-ER (FLP-EBD251-595) and FLP-AR ("DEF" domains of the human androgen receptor) fusion proteins is compared. Samples were cultured for 7 hours in glucose (1st lane) or galactose without (-) or with (+) ligands. For FLP-ER, 10⁻⁶ M estradiol was used, for FLP-AR, 10⁻⁶ M mibolerone was used.

Figure 3. Titration curves of estrogen agonists show that induction of FLP-EBD in yeast accurately reflect the natural mammalian binding affinities. Both wild-type (wt) and G400V forms of the FLP-EBD251 were tested against titrations of various ligands. Panel A shows the southern blot for estradiol, as an example. Ligand was added (+), or not (-), to the galactose medium to give final molar concentrations as indicated. Cells maintained in glucose medium are indicated as gl. Cells were harvested at 7 hours. Panel B shows the titration data after phosphorimager quantification, for the three estrogen agonists. The G400V mutated estrogen binding domain shows 30-100X lower affinity for each of the hormones (compare squares (wt) versus the circles (V400).

Figure 4. Titration curves for several estrogen antagonists. Panel A shows the southern blot data for ICI 182,780, as an example. Panel B shows plots of phosphorimaging data for all four of the antihormones tested. In all cases, inducing ligand concentrations for the FLP-EBD_{wt} and G400V proteins are lower than for the corresponding full-length estrogen receptor in mammalian cells.

Figure 5. FLP-EBD recombination in a color plate assay in yeast reflects affinity and the concentration of a hormone placed on a lawn of Yeast containing the SUP11 recombination unrecombined yeast cells. substrate (Fig. 1) and either the wt (FLP-EBD251-595)or G400V FLP-EBD fusion proteins were plated at high density onto low adenine medium in a An adenine marker in yeast gives a color standard 9 cm petri dish. phenotype (red) if the target gene has been deleted by the recombinase. Α 1 µl drop of ethanol containing none, 10 nmol or 100 pmol of estradiol was placed at the center of the plated yeast lawn and then grown for several days. The affinity for estradiol by the wt EBD is greater than the V400 EBD, hence it shows a larger red circle (the size reflects 30-100X higher affinity by the wt EBD). If only 1/100 as much hormone is added, both circles of red colonies are correspondingly smaller. The reaction with the wt form gives about the same size red circle (about 4 cm diameter) as the V400 form when 1/100 as much hormone is added, correlating with the affinity difference for estradiol.

Figure 6. (A) Schematic diagram of the ER LBD. (B) The protein sequence of the C, D, E, and F domains. The fusion points used for the FLP chimeras are signalled by the arrows at 251, 286, or 304. The structural elements of the hormone binding domain, deduced from sequence alignments and the known RAR structure (36,51), are mapped onto the sequence of the human ER. Boxes outline α -helices (H1 to H12) and arrows mark β -sheets (S1, S2).

Figure 7. The fusion point between FLP and the EBD determines its activity in yeast. In combination without (wt) or with the G400V mutation, FLP-EBDs containing the D domain ("251") or not ("304") were compared. Panel A shows estradiol titrations, panel B shows 4-hydroxytamoxifen titrations. The phosphorimager quantification of recombination for each panel is plotted below the southern blots.

Figure 8. The D domain selectively alters ligand responsiveness. Panel A shows that the deletion of the D domain ("304") renders the fusion recombinase insensitive to any of the antihormones tested. Parallel inductions with the FLP-EBD_{wt} ("251") serve as controls. The figure shows inductions by hormones (E-estrogen, D-diethylstilbestrol and H-hexestrol) at 10^{-7} M and antihormones (Z-OHT- 4-hydroxytamoxifen, RAL-raloxifene and ICI 182,780) at the concentrations indicated. Panel B shows FLP-EBD ligand inducibilities of an intermediate fusion point, at aa 286, compared to parallel inductions with FLP-EBD_{wt} ("251") and D domain deletion ("304") proteins.

Figure 9. The protein sequence of the C, D, E, and F domains of the human estrogen receptor (see Fig. 6). The regions of independent codon substitution mutagenesis libraries are outlined by large boxes and are labelled A through H. The fusion points used for the FLP chimeras are signalled by the arrows at 251, 286, or 304. The structural elements of the hormone binding domain, deduced from sequence alignments and the known RAR structure (36,51), are mapped onto the sequence of the human ER. Boxes outline α -helices (H1 to H12) and arrows mark β -sheets (S1, S2).

Figure 10. Screening procedure for isolation of mutations which show altered ligand reactivities, relative to the wild-type EBD. A pool of thousands of independent yeast transformants is grown in a galactose culture to induce transcription of the recombinase fusion gene. A first ligand is included (e.g. estradiol) with selection against recombination to The example presented here must enrich for non-ligand binding FLP-EBDs. maintain the URA3 gene between recombination targets. The cells are collected and grown in the presence of a second ligand without selection, and then screened on plates for the loss of the insert DNA (hence red colony, see Fig. 1). The FLP-EBD clone is recovered and tested, versus wild-type, as a pure cultured lawn of yeast in the plate assay with a panel of ligands. E2estradiol, OHT- 4-hydroxytamoxifen, Ral- raloxifene, DES- diethylstilbestrol, Tam- tamoxifen, ICI- ICI 182,780.

Table I

<u>Colonies which show altered ligand specificity with amino acid changes in</u> the human estrogen binding domain.

We used the wild-type FLP-EBD304-595 form as the parent where: -antihormones are selectively unable to activate the recombinase fusion -background recombination in the absence of ligand is virtually zero

(1). FLP-EBD304-595 with wild-type EBD:

Hormones activate; antihormones do not E2 ≥ DES = Hex >>> ZOHT > Tam > Ral > ICI E2-estradiol, ZOHT-4-hydroxytamoxifen, Ral-raloxifene, DES-diethylstilbestrol,

Tam- tamoxifen, ICI- ICI 182,780

MUTATIONS DEMONSTRATING:

 (2). <u>Reversed phenotype:</u> <u>antihormone active, hormone inactive</u> 175 isolates 25 separate sequences (10 very active; 11 moderately active; 4 very weak)

(3). <u>Relaxed Phenotype</u>:

recombinase activated by both hormones, antihormones 35 isolates 12 separate sequences

(4). <u>Changes in one hormone activation vs. another</u>:
 23 isolates
 7 separate sequences

(5). Other mutations were approximately wild-type: > 5000 isolates about 125 sequenced

(6). Mutations with no inducible recombinase activity: > 2000 isolates about 80 sequenced



Α.

.



ICI 182,780

нο

4-hydroxytamoxifen (Z-OHT)

н_зсо nafoxidine



raloxifene

Figure 1

.

B.



Figure 2

.

29

м^р х



Figure 3

.



Figure 4

,





Figure 6





ŝ



Figure 9

AGSTSSHSLQ KYYITGEAEG FPATV*

35

.



